
MINUTES OF MEETING 

HARMONY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETING 

Thursday, January 29, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. 

Su Mesa Cafe at 7250 Harmony Square Dr. S, 

Harmony, FL 34773 

Board Members Present: 

Daniel Leet Chairman 

Lucas Chokanis Vice Chairman (via phone) 

Brittney Coronel Assistant Secretary 

Jo Phillips Assistant Secretary 

Julie Nichols Williams Assistant Secretary 

Also Present: 

Lynne Mullins PFM 

Verona Griffith PFM (via phone) 

Michael Eckert Kutak Rock (via phone) 

Jonathan Soto Berman 

Eddie Padua Berman 

David Hamstra Pegasus 

Nick Lomasney ULS 

Various Residents in person and via Zoom 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 

Call to Order and Roll Call 

Mr. Leet called the Board of Supervisors meeting of the Harmony Community Development District to 

order at 6:00 p.m. Roll call was taken, and quorum was established. 

Public Comment Period 

Mr. Leet reviewed the public comment period process and called for public comments. 

A resident commented regarding the markings on the sidewalks and requested clarification. 

A resident commented regarding concern with the issues of parking on Five Oaks. She noted she is 

speaking on behalf of several residents, as well as herself. It was noted the trailers on the road are a safety 

issue for the children riding their scooters and bikes. The Sherrif has stated that as soon as signs are 

posted, the rules can be enforced. The resident also requested an update on the boat motors and safety 

equipment. She commented on the striping in front of the restaurant and on the corners and noted when 

cars are parked up to the corner, it's very hard to see. The resident also commented regarding the 



electrical in the tower becoming a fire hazard with the holiday decorations and the trees lining the 

entrance appear to need trimming. 

Ms. Mullins noted that District Counsel will be giving an update on the signage for Five Oaks. 

A resident on the phone commented regarding the speeding through the crosswalks coming from US-192. 

There were no further public comments at this time. 

Consideration of the Minutes of the 

December 18, 2025, Auditor Selection 

Committee Meeting 

The Board reviewed the minutes. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Phillips, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Minutes of the December 18, 2025, Auditor 

Selection Committee Meeting. 

Consideration of the Meeting Minutes 

of the December 18, 2025, Board of 

Supervisors' Meeting 

The Board reviewed the minutes. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Phillips, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Minutes of the December 18, 2025, Board of 

Supervisors' Meeting. 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Matters 

Consideration of Lift Station Purchase 

Items from Toho Water Authority 

Ms. Mullins noted this was received from Toho and states that Toho will pay the District $5,000.00 for the 

lift station. District Counsel has requested authorization to research this matter further. 

There was discussion regarding the location and purchase of the lift station by Toho. Ms. Mullins noted it 

is Lift Station 1H in Birchwood Neighborhood Band C. Mr. Leet noted this land is between the Town Square 

and townhouses. 

https://5,000.00


District Counsel noted this is an existing lift station on COD land and gave an overview of the location. The 

lift station is currently owned by the District. Toho has also agreed to reimburse any legal fees associated 

with this matter. 

There was brief discussion regarding the benefit to the District. It was noted there is an Easement 

Agreement already in place with Toho for access to the area. 

District Management will follow up with Toho regarding the reasoning. 

Discussion Items: 
1. One-on-One Training 

Sessions at Basketball Court 
2. OCPS 2026 Swim Program 

Pool Use 
3. Signage Refurbishment at 

Repaired Sculpture 
4. Signage to Discourage Pet 

Abandonment 
5. Request from Senator Kristen 

Arrington to Host Remote 

Office Hours at the Harmony 

CDD 
6. Reserve Study Items for the 

Harmony COD 

Ms. Mullins noted there have been paid one-on-one training sessions at the basketball court that is being 

advertised. 

Mr. Leet noted this is a benefit to the community, but proper liability insurance needs to be in place along 

with rental fees and security deposit. 

There was brief discussion regarding the fees and insurance. 

Mr. Strickland, the Basketball coach, gave a brief overview of the training sessions. It was noted only one­

on-one sessions are charged for and he is willing to comply with the policies in place for his training 

sessions at the Harmony CDD Basketball court. 

Ms. Phillips recommended having a bulletin board noting reservations for the courts. 

There was brief discussion regarding reservations and deposits. Rental fees are $5 an hour for residents. 

Ms. Mullins and District Counsel reviewed the rental policy. It was noted this would fall under a special 

event. 

Ms. Phillips noted the rules need to be reviewed. 



Mr. Chokanis noted that no one has come to a meeting to voice a complaint. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Williams, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the One-on-One Training Sessions at the Basketball 

Court with rental fee and security deposit required. 

District Management will follow up. 

Ms. Mullins noted the OCPS Swim Program was approved last year and is requesting use of the pool for 

this year. 

District Counsel noted a new agreement needs to be executed. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Williams, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the OCPS 2026 Swim Program Pool Use. 

Ms. Mullins gave an update on the refurbishment of the sculptures. The artist has noted there is significant 

damage to the structure and has requested a not-to-exceed amount of $3,500.00 for a change order for 

the additional repairs. 

There was brief discussion regarding the sculpture. It was noted that this is the sculpture at the Dog Park. 

Ms. Mullins noted the signage also needs to be replaced. The artist has submitted two versions for review. 

Ms. Phillips recommended giving Kia the authority to choose the signage. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Williams, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Sculpture Repair and Signage Refurbishment at 

the Dog Park Sculpture with a not-to-exceed amount of $3,500.00. 

Ms. Mullins noted a resident has requested a pet abandonment sign. 

There was brief discussion regarding the signage and various stray cats in the neighborhood. 

The Board agreed to not move forward with the pet abandonment signage. 

Ms. Mullins gave an overview of the request from Senator Arrington. She has requested remote office 

hours at the Harmony CDD. This will be in the Town Square near the flags. District Counsel has 

recommended approval. She will provide residents help with State services. 

There was brief discussion regarding the remote office hours and location. 

https://3,500.00
https://3,500.00


On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Williams, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Request from Senator Kristen Arrington to Host 

Remote Office Hours at Harmony COD. 

Ms. Mullins noted the Reserve Study has been reviewed by Ms. Griffith and District Management. The 

Reserve Study should have been followed starting in 2023. Ms. Mullins gave an overview and noted at the 

end of 2026, there should be $1.145 million in the reserves. 

Ms. Mullins gave an overview of the projects that are projected for this year. She recommended updating 

the reserve study during the budget process and noted the reserve study needs to be referenced during 

any major project approval. 

There was brief discussion regarding updating the reserve study. 

Review of 2025 Annual Monitoring 

Report from Bowman and Blair Ecology 

and Design 

Ms. Mullins gave an overview and noted Mr. Hamstra is working towards removing the various invasive 

plant species throughout the District. 

No action was required. 

Ratification of the Fiscal Year 2025 

Audit Engagement Letter with Grau & 

Associates 

Ms. Mullins noted this was executed outside of a meeting in order to keep the audit moving forward to 

meet the required deadlines. This is solely for ratification and is within the budget. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Williams, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District ratified the Fiscal Year 2025 Audit Engagement Letter with 

Grau and Associates. 

Ratification of Payment Authorizations 

Nos. 012 - 016 



Ms. Mullins noted these items have already been approved and reviewed by District Management and 

the Chair. These are solely for ratification. 

On MOTION by Ms. Phillips, seconded by Ms. Coronel, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District ratified Payment Authorizations Nos. 012-016. 

Review of District Financial Position and 

Budget to Actual 

Ms. Mullins stated the financials are through December. No further action was needed by the Board at 

this time. It was noted only 18% of the budget has been spent at this time. 

It was noted that Toho has stated that unless the bill is double the normal amount, they will not provide 

a credit. 

There was brief discussion regarding the mainline water breaks and previous credit given. District 

Management will follow up with Toho. 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Landscape Management - United 

Landscape Services 

Ratification of Proposals from ULS: 

1. Work Authorization #210674 

2" Mainline Break at the Dog 

Park for $680 
2. Work Authorization #210676 

3" Mainline Repair for $1,040 
3. Work Authorization #210679 

3" Mainline Break for $1,040 

4. Work Authorization #210703 

2" Mainline Break Next to Oak 

Tree for $1,330 

Ms. Mullins gave an overview of the proposals and noted these have already been completed as they are 

all mainline breaks. 

There was brief discussion regarding the proposals. 



On MOTION by Ms. Phillips, seconded by Mr. Leet, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District ratified the following Proposals from ULS: Work 

Authorizations #210674 in the amount of $680, #210676 in the amount of $1,040, #210679 in the amount 

of $1040, and #210703 in the amount of $1,330. 

Discussion Regarding Landscape Items: 

Mr. Lomasney gave updates regarding landscaping maintenance and overview of the previous ratified 

proposals. It was noted the flower planting has been halted due to the weather. Two proposals will be 

forthcoming when the weather allows. 

Mr. Lomasney noted residents are blowing leaves onto the turf and common areas. He also noted current 

enhancements have been halted due to the weather and frost. The fallen Crepe Myrtle trees have started 

to be removed. 

Mr. Lomasney noted there are valves stuck throughout the community and flags have been placed in 

those areas. He also gave overview of various issues still within the community that are being assessed. 

It was noted that February will be the heaviest leaf clean-up which will be the compost for the Garden. 

Oak trees are being trimmed for visibility. 

Mr. Lomasney recommended planting new landscaping in March. 

Mr. Lomasney recommended that residents pick up their leaves and put them in bags or put them in 

flowerbeds to act as mulch. It was noted to not place the leaves in the road. 

There was brief discussion regarding the leaves. District Management will follow up with the HOA 

-regarding an email blast. The Board also requested that Brady place this information in the newsletter. 

Ms. Mullins noted violation letters can be sent. 

There were no additional landscape items at this time. 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Field Management - Berman 

Consideration of Proposal for 

Replenishing Lakeshore Park Volleyball 

Court Sand from Berman in an amount 

totaling $5,850 

Berman gave an overview of the proposals. It was noted the volleyball court is missing about 46" of depth. 

This would take about one to two days to complete. 

There was brief discussion regarding the vandalism of sand. 



Mr. Leet noted this would be placed under the Park line item in the budget. 

There was lengthy discussion regarding the proposals and labor. It was noted this would be completed 

within a couple of weeks by additional Berman staff that are not currently onsite. 

It was noted this should be completed every two to three years. 

. There was brief discussion regarding the amount of sand needed and the budget. Ms. Griffith noted there 

is $55,000 in the Parks budget and $7,500 has already been used. 

On MOTION by Ms. Phillips, seconded by Mr. Leet, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Proposal for Replenishing Lakeshore Park 

Volleyball Court Sand from Berman in an amount totaling $5,850. 

Consideration of Proposal for 

Recirculation Pump Installation at the 

Ashley Park Pool from Spies in an 

amount totaling $6,642 

Berman gave an overview of the proposal. It was noted no other proposals have been received and this is 

a high priority item. 

Ms. Mullins noted this is a part of the reserve study for the current fiscal year. 

There was brief discussion regarding the proposal. 

Ms. Mullins recommended approving a not-to-exceed and trying to get additional proposals to compare 

cost within the week. 

The Board requested that moving forward there be at least two to three proposals. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Williams, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Proposal for Recirculation Pump Installation at 

the Ashley Park Pool from Spies with a not-to-exceed amount of $6,642, pending comparison proposals. 

Consideration of Proposal for Autofill 

System Repair at the Ashley Park Pool 

from Spies in an amount totaling $565 

Berman gave an overview of the proposal and noted this controls the water level. 



On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Phillips, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Proposal for Autofill System Repair at the Ashley 

Park Pool from Spies in an amount totaling $565. 

Ms. Phillips recommended keeping a log of replacement and repair. Mr. Leet noted this should be included 

in the reserve study records. 

Sidewalk RFP Update 

Ms. Mullins gave an update and noted that Ms. Coronel has marked the sidewalks for repair. The District 

Engineer will be moving forward with an RFP and submitting it to vendors for quotes. This is a high 

importance item. 

Consideration of Proposal for Trash 

Cans 

Berman gave an overview of the proposal in the amount of $3,966.54. It was noted the large ones will be 

replaced by smaller ones in order to relocate the others where needed. A trash can will still be needed at 

the grill. 

Ms. Phillips recommended relocating one of the trash cans at the Swim Club pool, as there are three in 

that location. 

Ms. Mullins noted this is a part of the reserve study for the current fiscal year. 

On MOTION by Mr. Leet, seconded by Ms. Phillips, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District approved the Proposal for Trash Cans. 

Ms. Phillips noted Berman can use her address for shipping. 

Berman Field Inspection Report 

The Board reviewed the Inspection Report. 

Ms. Coronel requested an update on the Cordgrass playground. Berman noted they are awaiting a 

proposal from GameTime, as they are the manufacturer. 

There was brief discussion regarding the doggy bags. It was noted sturdier ones have been purchased. 

https://3,966.54


It was noted the bathrooms at Buck Lake are reopened. 

Ms. Phillips recommended locking the bathrooms at Lakeshore Park in the evening when the last staff 

person leaves. 

There was brief discussion regarding locking the bathroom. Ms. Mullins will follow up. 

Ms. Coronel recommended having a bathroom check log for the staff who open and close. Berman will 

follow up. 

Ms. Phillips recommended turning the pool temperature up by two degrees after this more recent cold 

spell. It was noted that it is currently set at 87 degrees. 

There was brief discussion with residents regarding the pool temperature. 

District Counsel confirmed there is no issue with locking the bathrooms as they are not attached to a pool. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Security System Session 

Florida law requires Board discussions related to the District's security system, as well as any discussions 

that would reveal the operations of the security system, types of equipment, and/or locations, to be 

held in a closed session, per Section 119.07138 and Section 281.301 of the Florida Statutes. Only the 

Board and staff can be present for discussion of this agenda item. 

Public Security System Discussion 

The meeting was resumed at 8:15 p.m. 

Ms. Mullins noted no decisions were made at this time. 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

Staff Reports 

District Counsel -

Mr. Eckert gave an overview of the documents provided to the Board. It was noted the Parking Ordinance 

was provided to the County's Attorney and has been forwarded to the Transportation Department. An 

update will be forthcoming once received. 

Mr. Eckert reviewed the pertinent issues from the current legislative session, including the limits of 

sovereign immunity and the process for recall of Supervisors. 

District Engineer -

Mr. Hamstra gave an update and noted he will be working on the sidewalk repair RFP process. The Board 

will decide whether to complete in phases or as a whole. 



The conceptual plans for the RV/Storage lot are being revised with the direction of the County. This will 

be brought back for Board review. 

Mr. Hamstra gave an update on the pedestrian crossing. The maintenance responsibility is still not clear. 

Ms. Mullins noted the County has agreed to do a one-time clean up but has stated it is the District's 

responsibility. District Counsel is going to follow up. 

Mr. Hamstra gave an update on various permitting that needs to be submitted for the maintenance 

facility. 

Mr. Hamstra noted that 15% of the treatment for the invasive species has been completed. It was 

recommended that maintenance treatment be completed in October. 

There was brief discussion regarding environmental monitoring. Mr. Leet noted that some of the property 

does not belong to the COD. Mr. Hamstra noted the other area is owned by the golf course and he will 

follow up regarding reimbursement for that area. 

There was brief discussion regarding bike racks and possible additional golf cart parking. 

District Manager -
Ms. Mullins stated the next meeting is scheduled for February 26, 2026. She noted the March meeting is 

scheduled for March 26th
, but District Management is not available. She recommended moving this 

meeting to March 25th and holding the budget workshop at the same time. The District has requested a 

second workshop which would cost an additional $1,500.00. 

There was brief discussion regarding the location, the timing of the workshop, and the possibility of 

holding a second workshop. It was noted the meeting will be held at the Cafe' or the Mexican restaurant 

room. The workshop will begin at 4:30 p.m. 

Ms. Mullins noted a resident that moved out has requested their check from Field Management. This has 

been deferred to lnframark as that resident's check was not given to PFM. 

There was lengthy discussion regarding deposit check storage. PFM does not want to continue storing 

checks. District Counsel recommended returning the checks via mail and keeping an affidavit of all checks 

returned. Any checks that are returned will be kept in storage. 

Mr. Chokanis recommended returning the checks to the banks noted. It was noted the checks cannot be 

shredded as they are public records. 

District Counsel recommended mailing out all checks to the owners and any checks that are sent back can 

be returned to the banks, if the bank agrees. District Management will follow up. 

Supervisor Requests and Audience 

Comments 

There was brief discussion regarding the holiday lighting. It was noted the HOA can no longer fund this 

item. The HOA has requested that the COD help fund the lighting. It was noted they are going through the 

https://1,500.00


RFP process. The bids will be sent to the Board for review. Mr. Leet recommended this be placed on the 

agenda for the next meeting. Ms. Mullins noted this should be considered as an item in the budget. 

There were no further Supervisor requests or audience comments at this time. 

Adjournment 

On MOTION by Ms. Williams, seconded by Mr. Leet, with all in favor, the Board of Supervisors for the 

Harmony Community Development District adjourned the January 29, 2026, at 8:19 p.m., Board of 

Supervisors Meeting. 


